
 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
Date: Thursday, 25 August 2022 
Time:  10.00 am 
Venue: Council Chamber, Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, ME10 3HT* 

 
Membership: 
 
Councillors Derek Carnell, Mike Dendor and Carole Jackson. 
 
Quorum = 3  

 
  Pages 

Information for the Public 
*Members of the press and public may follow the proceedings of this meeting 
live via a weblink which will be published on the Swale Borough Council 
website.  
 
Link to meeting: To be added. 
 
Privacy Statement 
 
Swale Borough Council (SBC) is committed to protecting the privacy and 
security of your personal information. As data controller we ensure that 
processing is carried out in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 
and the General Data Protection Regulations. In calling to join the meeting 
you will be asked to provide a ‘username’ which will be visible to those 
Members and Officers in attendance at the meeting and will not be shared 
further. No other identifying information will be made available through 
your joining to the meeting. In joining the meeting you are providing the 
Council with your consent to process your ‘username’ for the duration of 
the meeting. Your ‘username’ will not be retained after the meeting is 
finished. Please note you may use a pseudonym as your username 
however please be aware use of any inappropriate language will not be 
tolerated.  
 
If you have any concerns or questions about how we look after your 
personal information or your rights as an individual under the 
Regulations, please contact the Data Protection Officer by email at 
dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk or by calling 01795 417114. 
 

 

Recording Notice 
Please note: this meeting may be recorded, and the recording may be added to 
the website. 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk


 

 

At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is 
being audio recorded.  The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where 
there are confidential or exempt items. 
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act.  Data collected during this recording will be retained in 
accordance with the Council’s data retention policy. 
 
Therefore by entering the meeting and speaking at Committee you are 
consenting to being recorded and to the possible use of those sound recordings 
for training purposes. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this please contact Democratic Services. 
 
1.  Emergency Evacuation Procedure 

 
The Chair will advise the meeting of the evacuation procedures to follow 
in the event of an emergency. This is particularly important for visitors and 
members of the public who will be unfamiliar with the building and 
procedures.  
 
The Chair will inform the meeting whether there is a planned evacuation 
drill due to take place, what the alarm sounds like (i.e. ringing bells), 
where the closest emergency exit route is, and where the second closest 
emergency exit route is, in the event that the closest exit or route is 
blocked.  
 
The Chair will inform the meeting that:  
 
(a) in the event of the alarm sounding, everybody must leave the building 
via the nearest safe available exit and gather at the Assembly points at 
the far side of the Car Park.  Nobody must leave the assembly point until 
everybody can be accounted for and nobody must return to the building 
until the Chair has informed them that it is safe to do so; and  
 
(b) the lifts must not be used in the event of an evacuation.  
 
Any officers present at the meeting will aid with the evacuation.  
 
It is important that the Chair is informed of any person attending who is 
disabled or unable to use the stairs, so that suitable arrangements may 
be made in the event of an emergency.  
  

 

2.  Apologies for Absence and Confirmation of Substitutes 
 

 

3.  Notification of Chairman and Outline of Procedure 
 

 

4.  Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or 
other material benefits for  themselves or their spouse, civil partner or 
person with whom they are living with as a spouse or civil partner.  They 
must declare and resolve any interests and relationships. 

 



 

 

 
The Chair will ask Members if they have any interests to declare in 
respect of items on this agenda, under the following headings: 
 
(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 
2011.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be 
declared.  After declaring a DPI, the Member must leave the meeting and 
not take part in the discussion or vote.  This applies even if there is 
provision for public speaking. 

 
(b) Disclosable Non Pecuniary Interests (DNPI) under the Code of 
Conduct adopted by the Council in May 2012.  The nature as well as the 
existence of any such interest must be declared.  After declaring a DNPI 
interest, the Member may stay, speak and vote on the matter. 

 
(c) Where it is possible that a fair-minded and informed observer, 
having considered the facts would conclude that there was a real 
possibility that the Member might be predetermined or biased the 
Member should declare their predetermination or bias and then leave the 
meeting while that item is considered. 

 
Advice to Members:  If any Councillor has any doubt about the 
existence or nature of any DPI or DNPI which he/she may have in any 
item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer, the Head of Legal or from other Solicitors in Legal Services as 
early as possible, and in advance of the Meeting. 
  

Part B Report for the Licensing Sub-Committee to decide 
 

 

5.  Application for a new Premises Licence 
 
To consider a new premises licence for Unit 1, Britannia House, 75 High 
Street, Sheerness.  

5 - 120 

 

Issued on Monday, 15 August 2022 
 

The reports included in Part I of this agenda can be made available 
in alternative formats. For further information about this service, or 
to arrange for special facilities to be provided at the meeting, please 
contact DEMOCRATIC SERVICES on 01795 417330. To find out 
more about the work of this Committee, please visit 
www.swale.gov.uk 

 
 
 
Chief Executive, Swale Borough Council, 

Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT 



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Sub-Committee  

Meeting Date 25th August 2022 

Report Title Consideration of an application for the grant of a new 
premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Unit 1 Britannia House 75 High Street Sheerness Kent 
ME12 1TX 

Lead Officer Johanna Thomas, Licensing Officer 

Classification Open 

Recommendations 1. Members are requested to determine the application 
on its merits 

 

1 Purpose of Report and Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The report advises Members of an application for a premises licence to be 
 granted under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of which representations have 
 been made by Seven (7) interested parties 
 

2 Background 
 
2.1 The Licensing Sub-Committee is asked to determine an application for the grant 
 of a new premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of premises at 
 Unit 1 Britannia House 75 High Street Sheerness Kent ME12 1TX 
 
2.2 The Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) requires the Council (as licensing 
 authority) to carry out its various functions so as to promote the following four 
 licensing objectives: 
  

• the prevention of crime and disorder 

• the protection of public safety 

• the prevention of public nuisance 

• the protection of children from harm 
 
2.3 The 2003 Act requires the council to publish a ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’ that 

 sets out the policies the council will generally apply to promote the licensing 
 objectives when making decisions on applications made under the Act. The 
 council first adopted its Statement of Licensing Policy in 2004 and it has been 
 regularly reviewed in line with legislative requirements ever since. The latest 
 policy was adopted on 1 April 2021. The Policy will be available at the meeting for 
 reference purposes. 

 
2.4 Under the 2003 Act, licensing authorities must, in carrying out their functions, 

have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. The 
Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



may arise. Provided that the licensing authority has properly understood and 
considered the Guidance, it may depart from it when it has reason to do so. 
However, as the licensing authority is under a duty to have regard to the 
Guidance, it will need to give full reasons for any departure from it. This would be 
a key consideration for the courts should departure from the Guidance result in a 
determination which gives right to an appeal or judicial review. The Guidance will 
be available at the meeting for reference purposes. 

 
2.5 A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the Licensing Sub-

Committee in relation to an application, along with a copy of the Hearings 
Regulations has been circulated to all parties prior to the meeting. 

 
2.6 The Licensing Authority must, under the Act, refer any application for hearing to 

the Licensing Sub-Committee where relevant representations are made by a 
responsible authority or an interested party. 

 
2.7 The Licensing Sub-Committee is reminded that the Human Rights Act 1998 

guarantees the right to a fair hearing for all parties in the determination of their 
civil rights. The Act also provides for the protection of property which may include 
licences in existence and the protection of private and family life. 

 

3 The Application 
 
3.1 On 11th July 2022 an application was received from Mr Lee Robert McCall for the 

grant of a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
 
3.2 The application is for: 
 

Sale and Supply of Alcohol (on the Premises)  
Monday to Thursday  10:00 – 23:00 
Friday and Saturday  10:00 – 00:00 
Sunday    10:00 – 22:00 
Christmas Eve   10:00 – 00:00 
New Year’s Eve    10:00 to 01:00 New Year’s Day 

 
Live Music (indoors and outdoors) 
Monday to Saturday   19:00 – 22:00 
Sunday    11:00 – 22:00 
New Year’s Eve & Christmas Eve 11:00 – 00:00 

 
Recorded Music (indoors) 
Monday to Thursday  10:00 – 23:00 
Friday and Saturday  10:00 – 00:00 
Sunday    10:00 – 22:00 
New Year’s Eve & Christmas Eve 11:00 – 00:00 

 

Page 6



 
3.3 Part M of the statutory application form asks applicants to describe the steps they 

intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives. Where an application has 
been properly made and no responsible authority or other person has made a 
relevant representations, or where representations are made and subsequently 
withdrawn, these proposals are ‘converted’ in the form of clear and enforceable 
licence conditions which, together with the Mandatory Conditions, make up the 
premises licence. 

 
3.4 A copy of the application is shown as Appendix I. A copy of the plans for the 

premises are shown at Appendix II. 
 
3.5 The applicant has commissioned an independent Fire Risk Assessment to 

support the application. This is shown at Appendix VI. 
 

 
4 Representations 
 
4.1 At any stage during the 28 day consultation period a responsible authority, a 
 Councillor or an interested party, may make representations provided that the 
 grounds are relevant to the licensing objectives and are not deemed to be 
 vexatious, frivolous or repetitive. 
 
4.2 Representations from responsible authorities: 
 

• Kent and Medway Fire and Rescue Service – No representations. Although 
Kent and Medway Fire and Rescue Service made no representations on 18th 
July in light of the nature of the objections an email was sent to Kent and 
Medway Fire and Rescue Service on 19th July raising the concerns about 
fireboarding, the email is shown as Appendix III, to date we have not 
received a reply. 

• Kent County Council Trading Standards – No representations 

• Kent County Council Services Children and Families – No representations 

• Kent County Council Public Health – No representations 

• Environmental Health, Swale BC – No representations 

• Swale Borough Council Planning Area Team – Sittingbourne and Sheppey – 
No representations. Response shown as Appendix IV this includes the 
licensing team raising an enquiry with planning as a result of comments made 
by members of the public who objected. 

• Kent Police – No representations 
 

 
4.3 There have been 7 representations from members of the public. The 

representations are made on the basis of all 4 of the licensing objectives of 

Page 7



prevention of crime and disorder, promotion of public safety, prevention of public 
nuisance, and protection of children from harm. These are shown at Appendix V. 

 

 
5 Policy considerations 
 
 The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s Guidance apply to this 

application: 

Chapter 2 – The licensing objectives 

Chapter 8 – Applications for premises licences 

Chapter 9 – Determining applications 

Chapter 10 – Conditions attached to Premises Licences 

The following paragraphs of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy apply to 
this application:  

Sections 3.1 to 3.14.4 – These sections set out the Council’s approach with 
regard to licensing and details other mechanisms to deal with potential problems. 

Section 2.1 to 2.8 – These sections set out the four licensing objectives and 
identifies matters that may be relevant to the promotion of each licensing 
objective. 

 
 

6 Determining the application – Options of the Sub-Committee 
 
5.1 Members are asked to determine which of the following options they deem 

appropriate: 
 

(i) grant a licence as applied for 
  

(i) grant a licence subject to conditions consistent with the Operating 
Schedule modified to such an extent as considered appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and any mandatory conditions 

 
(ii) grant a licence but excluding any of the licensable activities applied for 
 

(iii) grant a licence but refusing to specify a designated premises supervisor 
 

(iv) reject the application 
 

5.2 Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are reminded of their duty under 
 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to consider the crime and disorder 

Page 8



 implications of their decisions and the Licensing Authority’s responsibility to so-
 operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in the Borough. 
 
   

6 Implications 
 
 

Issue Implications 

Corporate Plan A community to be proud of: by promoting the four licensing 
objectives the authority is enriching and enhancing the community 
whilst maintaining its regulatory and enforcement role. 

Financial, 
Resource and 
Property 

None unless there is an appeal to Magistrates’ Court which proves 
to be successful and which could therefore result in costs being 
awarded against the Council. 

Legal and 
Statutory 

The Licensing Sub-Committee has to decide on the outcome of the 
application taking into account the four licensing objectives, 

In accordance with the Act, if a licensing authority rejects in whole 
or in part, an application to grant a premises licence the applicant 
may appeal against the decision, to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 
days of being notified of the decision. 

Similarly, where a person who made relevant representations in 
relation to the application contends that the licence ought not to 
have been granted or that different or additional conditions should 
have been imposed on the licence; they may appeal against the 
decision, to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of being notified of 
the decisions 

Crime and 
Disorder 

The council has a duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998 to consider the crime and disorder implications of their 
decisions and the Licensing Authority’s responsibility to co-operate 
in the reduction of crime and disorder in the Borough. 
 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

No implications 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

No implications 

Risk Management 
and Health and 
Safety 

Departure from the Guidance and Statement of Licensing Policy 
could lead to an increased risk of appeal.  Similarly, if any decision 
made is not evidence based and proportionate 

Equality and 
Diversity 

No implications 

Page 9



Privacy and Data 
Protection 

Normal privacy and data protection rules apply. 

 

6 Appendices 
 
6.1 The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the 

report: 

• Appendix I: Application form 

• Appendix II: Plan of premises 

• Appendix III: Email to Kent and Medway Fire and Rescue Service  

• Appendix IV: Consultation Response form Planning Area Team 

• Appendix V: Representations against the application 

• Appendix VI: Fire Risk Assessment 

 

 
 
 

7 Background Papers 
 
 The Licensing Act 2003 
 Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended) 
 Swale BC Statement of Licensing Policy 
 
 

Page 10



Page 11

JoT
Typewritten Text
Appendix I



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix III 

 

Page 35



Appendix III 

 

 

Page 36



Appendix III 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix IV 

 

 

Page 39



Appendix IV 

 

 

Page 40



Appendix IV 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120


	Agenda
	5 Application for a new Premises Licence
	Appendix I_Redacted
	Appendix II - updated
	Appendix III
	Appendix IV
	AppendixV_Redacted
	AppendixVI




